
 
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 Thursday, 4th March, 2021 
at 6.00 pm 
 

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING 
 

This will be a ‘virtual meeting 
 
 
 

 Members 
 

 Councillor Bogle (Chair) 
Councillor White (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Laurent 
Councillor Professor Margetts 
Councillor Noon 
Councillor Payne 
Councillor Vaughan 
 

 Contacts 
 

 Ed Grimshaw 
Democratic Support Officer 
Tel: 023 8083 2390 
Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk 
 
 

 Mark Pirnie 
Scrutiny Manager 
Tel: 023 8083 3886 
Email: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 
 

  

  

  
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk


 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 

ROLE OF HEALTH OVERVIEW SCRUTINY PANEL  (TERMS OF REFERENCE) 

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s responsibilities and terms of reference are set out 
within Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution: Responsibility for Functions  

The general role and terms of reference for the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, together with those for all Scrutiny Panels, are set out in Part 2 (Article 6) of the 
Council’s Constitution, and their particular roles are set out in Part 4 (Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules  of the Constitution. 

 

MOBILE TELEPHONES: - Please switch your mobile telephones to silent whilst in the meeting. 

 
USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA: - The Council supports the video or audio recording of meetings 
open to the public, for either live or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in the Chair’s opinion, a 
person filming or recording a meeting or taking photographs is interrupting proceedings or 
causing a disturbance, under the Council’s Standing Orders the person can be ordered to stop 
their activity, or to leave the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being 
recorded and to the use of those images and recordings for broadcasting and or/training 
purposes. The meeting may be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
Any person or organisation filming, recording or broadcasting any meeting of the Council is 
responsible for any claims or other liability resulting from them doing so. 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the recording of meetings is available on the Council’s 
website. 
 
PUBLIC REPRESENTATIONS  
At the discretion of the Chair, members of the public may address the meeting on any report 
included on the agenda in which they have a relevant interest. Any member of the public 
wishing to address the meeting should advise the Democratic Support Officer (DSO) whose 
contact details are on the front sheet of the agenda. 

 

SMOKING POLICY – the Council operates a no-smoking policy in all civic buildings. 

Southampton: Corporate Plan 2020-2025 sets out the four key outcomes: 
  

 Communities, culture & homes - Celebrating the diversity of cultures within 
Southampton; enhancing our cultural and historical offer and using these to help 
transform our communities. 

 Green City - Providing a sustainable, clean, healthy and safe environment for everyone. 
Nurturing green spaces and embracing our waterfront. 

 Place shaping - Delivering a city for future generations. Using data, insight and vision to 
meet the current and future needs of the city. 

 Wellbeing - Start well, live well, age well, die well; working with other partners and other 
services to make sure that customers get the right help at the right time 

 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 
BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 
Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this meeting.  
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
The meeting is governed by the Council 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of the 
Constitution. 
QUORUM 
The minimum number of appointed Members 
required to be in attendance to hold the meeting 
is 3. 



 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, 
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other 
Interest” they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband 
or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation 
to:  

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

(ii) Sponsorship 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
Southampton City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect 
of any expense incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which 
the you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council 
under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, 
and which has not been fully discharged. 

(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton. 

(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
Southampton for a month or longer. 

(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council 
and the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests. 

(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) 
has a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either: 

 (a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that body, or 

 (b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a 
beneficial interest that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

OTHER INTERESTS 
 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any 
membership of, or  occupation of a position of general control or management in: 

 Any body to which they  have been appointed or nominated by Southampton 
City Council 

 Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature 

 Any body directed to charitable purposes 

 Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or 
policy 

 
 
 



 

PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 
 

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
 

 proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

 due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

 respect for human rights; 

 a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

 setting out what options have been considered; 

 setting out reasons for the decision; and 

 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
 

 understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

 take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the 
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

 leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

 act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

 not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known 
as the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

 comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual 
basis.  Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward 
funding are unlawful; and 

 act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 

DATES OF MEETINGS: MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/2020 
 

2020 2021 

2 July  4 March  

3 September 22 April  

22 October  

17 December  
 

 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  
 

 To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 4.3.  
 

2   DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
  

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer. 

 
3   DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST  

 
 Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a 

Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being 
scrutinised at this meeting.  
  

4   DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP  
 

 Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter 
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.  
  

5   STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  
 

6   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  
(Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 17 December 
2020 and to deal with any matters arising, attached. 
 

7   COVID-19 PLANNING  
(Pages 5 - 20) 
 

 Report of the Chair of the Panel requesting that the Panel consider an update from the 
Interim Director of Public Health on Covid-19 planning in Southampton. 
 

8   SOUTHAMPTON SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 
(Pages 21 - 50) 
 

 Report of the Independent Chair of the Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board 
providing the Panel with an update on the work of the Board during 2019/20. 
 
 
 



 

9   ADULT SOCIAL CARE UPDATE  
(Pages 51 - 52) 
 

 Report of the Chair of the Panel requesting that the Cabinet Member for Health and 
Adults and the Executive Director - Wellbeing (Health and Adults) update the Panel on 
developments in Adult Social Care since the previous update. 
 

10   MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS  
(Pages 53 - 56) 
 

 Report of the Director, Legal and Business Operations, enabling the Panel to monitor 
and track progress on recommendations made at previous meetings. 
 

Wednesday, 24 February 2021 Service Director – Legal and Business Operations 
  
 



 

- 9 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Bogle (Chair), White (Vice-Chair), Laurent, 
Professor Margetts, Noon, Payne and Vaughan 
 

 
16. STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  

The Chair acknowledged that James Rimmer and Stephanie Ramsey would soon be 
moving on from their current posts and expressed the Panel’s gratitude for the support 
they had given the Panel.   
 

17. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

RESOLVED: that the minutes for the Panel meeting on 22 October 2020 be approved 
and signed as a correct record.  
 

18. MENTAL HEALTH UPDATE  

The Panel considered the report of the Director of Quality and Integration providing an 
update on mental health services in Southampton. 
 
Stephanie Ramsey – Director of Quality & Integration, Integrated Commissioning Unit, 
Dr Adam Cox - Divisional Clinical Director, Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust, Liz 
Doyle – Senior Clinical Lead, Dorset Healthcare, Amanda Luker – Senior 
Commissioner, Integrated Commissioning Unit, Claire Robinson - Clinical Director of 
Children and Family Services, Solent NHS Trust and Dr Hana Burgess - Clinical Lead 
for Mental health, NHS Southampton City CCG were in attendance and, with the 
consent of the Chair, addressed the meeting.  

The Panel discussed a number of points including: 
 

 The structure of mental health provision in the City.  It was noted that the various 
agencies within the City had adopted strong collaborative protocols in order to 
ensure appropriate treatments were available from the correct providers. 

 The impact of Covid 19 on the types of support being provided.  It was noted that 
initially all face appointments had been halted and that appointments were held 
virtually.  It was noted that some progress had been made in ensuring that those 
in need could have face to face appointments.  It was detailed that there had 
been a positive patient response;   

 The potential impact of Covid 19 on the number of people requiring support and 
treatment;   

 The funding for rough sleepers during the 1st wave of the pandemic; and  

 The effect of the of the changes to the CCG structures on the provision of mental 
health care within the City.  

 
RESOLVED that the Panel noted the report but, requested that additional 
information on accommodation for rough sleepers during the pandemic is circulated 
to the Panel.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

- 10 - 
 

19. ADULT SOCIAL CARE UPDATE  

The Panel considered the report of the Executive Director - Health and Adults, 
providing the Panel with an update on developments with regards to the provision of 
adult social care in Southampton. 
 
Councillor Fielker – Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Care, Grainne Siggins – SCC 
Executive Director, Health and Adults, Stephanie Ramsey - Director of Quality & 
Integration, Integrated Commissioning Unit and Karen Biddle – Principal Social Worker, 
Adult Social Care were in attendance and, with the consent of the Chair, addressed the 
meeting.  

 
The Panel discussed a number of points including: 
 

 The differences between the care schemes set by Central Government and how 
funding was affecting care packages; 

 The level of complex care packages required; 

 Medically optimised for discharge; 

 Measures of support for staff and staff involvement including methods used to 
address absence; 

 The initial outcomes of the Social Care Health Check; and  

 The potential level of future demand on services and whether the forthcoming 
budget was realistically set for the level of demand.  

  
 
RESOLVED that the Panel requested: 

1. That the Social Care Health Check is shared with the HOSP when it is 
completed. 

2. That absence data, broken down by Adult Social Care teams, is circulated to the 
Panel. 

3. That the Panel consider post Covid-19 demand, and the additional funding 
proposed for adult social care at the 4 March 2021 meeting of the HOSP. 

 
20. COVID-19 PLANNING  

The Panel considered and noted the verbal update presented by the Interim Director of 
Public Health on Covid-19 planning in Southampton.  
 
Debbie Chase, Interim Director of Public Health was in attendance and, with the 
consent of the Chair, addressed the meeting.  

 

The Panel were briefed on a number of issues and discussed: 
 

 The numbers of confirmed case in the City and the numbers of over 60s in 
hospital with Covid 19; 

 The introduction of Covid Marshalls, and Champions; 

 Public engagement through the Local Outbreak Engagement Board; 

 Concerns that Brexit may impede the distribution of the Covid vaccine;   

 The importance of strong communication of the public health messages in order 
to keep members of the public following the hands, face, space message; and   

Page 2



 

- 11 - 
 

 How the public were looking to Councillors to provide information about the 
vaccination programme in the City.  

 
RESOLVED that the Panel requested: 
 

1. That, reflecting the role played by elected members in engaging with residents, 
Councillors are kept informed of the appropriate communications and messages 
with regards to the roll out of the vaccination in Southampton. 

2. That, reflecting concerns that the message will be diluted with the 
commencement of vaccinations, public health messages with regards to hands, 
face, space are reinforced to remind the public of the ongoing need to remain 
vigilant.   

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER:  HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

SUBJECT: COVID-19 PLANNING 

DATE OF DECISION: 4 MARCH 2021 

REPORT OF: COUNCILLOR BOGLE 

CHAIR OF THE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Title:  Scrutiny Manager Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 Name: Mark Pirnie   

 E-mail Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

At the request of the Chair, the Interim Director of Public Health has been invited to 
provide the Panel with a verbal update on Covid-19 planning in Southampton. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Panel consider the update from the Interim Director of 
Public Health on Covid-19 planning in Southampton. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To enable the Panel to scrutinise Covid-19 planning in Southampton. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. No alternative options have been considered. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. Following an update at the 17 December 2020 meeting of the Panel, the 
Chair has requested that the Interim Director of Public Health provides the 
Panel with an update on Covid-19 developments in Southampton. 

4. To provide context to the discussion a coronavirus infographic report is 
published weekly to help inform members of the public of the current 
coronavirus situation in Southampton. This report can be found at: 

https://data.southampton.gov.uk/health/disease-disability/covid-19/covid-19-
updates/ (scroll down to visualisation and click on LINK on the far right hand side) 

5. In addition to the weekly data the Local Outbreak Engagement Board, at their 
8 February 2021 meeting, considered the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Covid 
Vaccination Programme and the Southampton Test and Trace initiative.  The 
relevant Board papers are attached as appendices.   

6. Dr Debbie Chase, the Interim Director of Public Health will update the Panel 
on developments related to these initiatives and other relevant activity. 
Supporting Dr Chase, and to provide the Panel with an overview of the 
pressures on local NHS services caused by the pandemic, Stephanie 
Ramsey, Director of Quality and Integration at the Integrated Commissioning 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

https://data.southampton.gov.uk/health/disease-disability/covid-19/covid-19-updates/
https://data.southampton.gov.uk/health/disease-disability/covid-19/covid-19-updates/


Unit and Phil Aubrey-Harris, Associate Director of Primary Care at NHS 
Southampton City CCG will also be in attendance.  A brief summary of the 
impact of Covid-19 and the third wave on NHS services in Southampton is 
attached as Appendix 3. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

7. Not applicable 

Property/Other 

8. Not applicable.  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

9. The duty for local authorities to undertake health scrutiny is set out in National 
Health Service Act 2006. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set 
out in Part 1A Section 9 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

Other Legal Implications:  

10. None 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

11. The management of risk as it relates to Covid-19 is a key consideration of the 
Health Protection Board.  

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

12. None. 

 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Local Outbreak Engagement Board Paper on the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Covid Vaccination Programme – 8 February 2021 

2. Local Outbreak Engagement Board Paper on the Southampton Test and 
Trace Programme – 8 February 2021 

3. The impact of Covid-19 and the 3rd wave on Southampton 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out? 

No 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Page 6



Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out?   

No 

Other Background Documents 

Other Background documents available for inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. N/A  

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER:  Local Outbreak Engagement Board 

SUBJECT: Hampshire and Isle of Wight COVID-19 Vaccination 
Programme 

DATE OF DECISION: 8 February 2021 

REPORT OF: Interim Director of Public Health   

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name:  Debbie Chase  Tel: 023 80833694 

 E-mail: Debbie.Chase@southampton.gov.uk 

Director Name:  Debbie Chase Tel: 023 80833694 

 E-mail: Debbie.Chase@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A. 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

The NHS in Hampshire and Isle of Wight is continuing to vaccinate patients against 
coronavirus during the biggest immunisation programme in history. Across the county 
NHS teams, supported by a network of volunteers, are engaged in the huge effort to 
vaccinate the first four priority groups before the government’s target date of mid-
February. That means delivering a first dose to protect the over-80s, care home 
residents and staff, and frontline  health and social care staff. 

This paper provides an update on the vaccination programme to date and planned 
continued roll-out across the county.  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) The Local Outbreak Engagement Board is asked to note the 
progress of the vaccination programme and planned next steps.   

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. N/A report is for information and discussion. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. None 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. In December last year the rollout of the vaccination programme began with 
the Pfizer/BioNTech vaccine reaching patients 80 years of age and above, as 
well as frontline health and social care staff, based on The Joint Committee 
on Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI) guidance for priority groups. 

4. The COVID-19 vaccination programme has gained further momentum with 
the news that the Oxford/ AstraZeneca vaccine has been authorised for use. 
The first Oxford/AstraZeneca vaccinations started to be delivered to sites 
across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight in early January.  

5. The NHS has planned extensively to deliver the largest vaccination 
programme in our history, providing three different delivery methods: 

 Hospital Hubs – which are focusing on NHS and social care staff 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



 Local Vaccine Services – provided by GPs working together as 
Primary Care Networks (PCNs) 

 Vaccination Centres – large sites based within local communities and 
convenient for transport networks. 

6. The government has set a target to deliver the first dose of vaccinations to the 
first priority groups (over 80s, care home residents and staff, and frontline 
health and social care staff) by mid-February 2021. There is a high degree of 
confidence that the NHS in Hampshire and Isle of Wight has the capacity and 
resources in place to reach this target. 

7. In Southampton there are six Local Vaccination Service (LVS) sites 
operational in the city operated by our Primary Care Networks (PCNs) which 
bring together groups of GP practices working together to serve the needs of 
their populations. These are located in established healthcare facilities, mostly 
existing GP practice buildings. The first round of vaccinations took place 
before Christmas (W/C 14th December 2020) at the PCN sites and some 
second dosages were administered 3 weeks later (W/C 4th January 2021), 
though the national guidance has now changed with second doses due within 
12 weeks of the first 

8. The LVS sites have delivered the majority of vaccinations so far locally. We 
also have a vaccination centre which is live at Oakley Road – this site initially 
offered vaccines to community healthcare staff and is also now accessible for 
priority groups.   

9. The deployment of the Pfizer vaccine from LVS sites has required some 
operational considerations such as provision for 15 min observation period by 
a clinician, this has led to use of heated marquees on some sites.  The CCG 
and LVS sites have engaged positively with Southampton City Council 
departments who have supported with issues such as parking and traffic 
management on some sites.   All sites have benefited from the support of 
local voluntary organisations and volunteers which has been extremely 
positive in supporting patient experience of these services.  

10. On 18 January it was also announced that people aged 70 and over and 
those who are listed as clinically extremely vulnerable will now also start 
receiving invitations to have the vaccination. Vaccinating the first two groups 
will remain the priority but vaccination sites which will have enough supply 
and capacity for vaccinating further people are allowed to offer vaccinations to 
the next two cohorts. Care home residents are also starting to be offered their 
vaccine already, and we are now rapidly scaling up the effort to reach people 
who are housebound. 

11. Residents are asked to wait to be contacted by the NHS for an appointment 
for vaccination. When it is the right time people will be contacted to make their 
appointments. For most people they will receive a letter either from their GP 
or the national booking system; this will include all the information they need, 
including their NHS number, to book an appointment. Some services are 
currently also phoning and texting patients to invite them in. 

12. Despite the phenomenal effort to stand up clinics so quickly and begin 
vaccinating people, the NHS is aware of frustrations people are feeling as 
they are unsure of when they might be invited for their jab. The NHS will 
continue to work in order of priority groups, as identified by the Joint 

Page 10



Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI) and will contact people 
when they are invited to receive the vaccination.  

13. Local people can support their local NHS by: 

 Making sure they are registered with a GP practice. 

 Ensuring their GP practice has up-to-date contact details for them – 
especially a mobile phone number if they have one. This makes it 
quicker and easier for them to make contact. There is no need to call 
the practice with this information – it can be updated online through the 
practice website. 

 Continuing to follow the government guidelines to keep themselves 
and others safe by complying with lockdown rules, washing your 
hands, covering your face, and giving other people space when you 
are out. This is really important even once you’ve had the vaccine. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

14. This paper is for information only.  

Property/Other 

15. This paper is for information only. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

16. This paper is for information only. 

Other Legal Implications:  

17. This paper is for information only. 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

18. This paper is for information only. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

19. This paper is for information only. 

 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices  

1. None  

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and 

Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out. 

No 

Page 11



Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection  
Impact Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out.   

No 

Other Background Documents 

Other Background documents available for inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None   

 

Page 12



DECISION-MAKER:  Local Outbreak Engagement Board 

SUBJECT: Southampton Test and Trace 

DATE OF DECISION: 8th February 2021 

REPORT OF: Interim Director of Public Health  

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name:  Amy McCullough  Tel: 023 8083 3694 

 E-mail: amy.mccullough@southampton.gov.uk 

Director Name:  Debbie Chase Tel: 023 8083 3694 

 E-mail: debbie.chase@southampton.gov.uk 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

N/A 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

Southampton Test and Trace went live as a pilot on 3rd December 2020, targeting 
areas in the city with the highest prevalence of Covid-19, to supplement the national 
Test and Trace service offering. The service demonstrated its effectiveness over the 
pilot period, adding value to the National Test and Trace service and helping to 
minimise the public health risks of onward transmission of COVID-19. Given its 
success, and the escalated Covid-19 situation in Southampton, the service will now be 
scaled up to ensure coverage for the whole city. 

  

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) The Local Outbreak Engagement Board is asked to note the 
progress and aims of Southampton’s Test and Trace service. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. N/A. Report is for information and discussion. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. None. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The Southampton Test and Trace service pilot covered Bargate, Basset, 
Bevois, Shirley and Woolston, approximately a third of Southampton’s 
population. These initial Wards were chosen based upon the following criteria:  

 Higher incidence of infection. 

 Wider risk of contracting infection through working/living conditions. 

 Higher proportions of younger people where infection rates are higher 
and may be less engaged with NHS Test & Trace. 

 Higher proportions of people with clinical vulnerability to COVID-19 
(which include factors such as deprivation and ethnicity). 

During the week commencing 14th December 2020, the pilot was expanded to 
cover some additional wards (Bitterne, Bitterne Park, Coxford, Peartree, 
Redbridge, Swaythling). 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



4. The launch of a citywide local contact tracing service, covering all the 
Postcodes and Wards in the City, is an important tool in preventing onward 
transmission of COVID-19 across the city.  Alongside the other key Outbreak 
Control Programme projects, as well as the vaccination programme (led by 
the NHS), the service will be an important part of Southampton City Council’s 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

5. As is the case for the pilot phase, the national Test and Trace service will 
“handover” residents that test positive (index cases) to Southampton Test and 
Trace where the national team have been unable to contact the resident 
within 32 hours. In this way, Southampton’s Test and Trace service will 
augment the national service by continuing to try and contact residents for (up 
to) a further 72 hours. Contact by Southampton Test and Trace will initially be 
made by phone, email and text. After the third telephone attempt, a 
Community Engagement Lead will visit the resident's home to try to make 
contact on the doorstep. 

6. The expected benefits of a city-wide Southampton Test and Trace service 
include: 

 preventing the spread of COVID-19 infection in the City by increasing 
the proportion of residents that are successfully contacted where they 
have tested positive for COVID-19 

 supporting vulnerable residents by identifying individuals and families 
that require support to self-isolate 

 informing intelligence on where higher levels of spread of infection 
may be taking place so that preventative action can be taken, and 
patterns can be monitored 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

7. Southampton Test and Trace is currently funded by the Test and Trace 
funding grant awarded by the Government (£1,571,231) and the Contain 
Outbreak Management Fund (£2,597,349). The projected costs for 
implementation of the service is £278,698 for 7 months (1-month pilot, plus 6 
months of scaled up, city wide service provision). This includes initial set up 
costs, such as provision of necessary equipment and mandatory training and 
ongoing revenue costs for staffing, which is primarily through internal 
redeployees, and specialist, clinical advice provided by Southampton Primary 
Care Trust Limited (SPCL) as needed. The ongoing costs of the service are 
regularly monitored and reported to MCHLG monthly, as per the terms of the 
Contain funding allocation. 

Property/Other 

8. N/A 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

9. Coronavirus Act 2020 and subordinate legislation 

Other Legal Implications:  

10. N/A 

 
Page 14



RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

11. N/A 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

12. N/A 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All wards. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices  

1. None  

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None  

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and 

Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out. 

No 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection  
Impact Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out.   

No 

Other Background Documents 

Other Background documents available for inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None   

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Impact of COVID-19 and the third wave on Southampton 
 
Following the first peak of COVID-19, NHS services in Southampton have either been 
restored to original methods of access or with the use of digital and telephone access 
continuing where required to maintain infection control and social distancing requirements. 
 
While, at the time of writing, the number of patients with confirmed COVID-19 in critical care 
beds at University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust is decreasing, the pressure 
on acute services locally and across the country remains very high.    
 
The number of patients waiting over 52 weeks and total waiting list size levels had stabilised 
prior to the third wave of COVID-19.  However, non-urgent elective activity ceased during 
January and February (urgent and cancer procedures were maintained) and the number of 
patients waiting over 52 weeks, and the total list size, has risen further. 
 
Cancer capacity has remained fully restored.  Inpatient elective, MRI and CT activity levels 
have all been maintained at 80% of historic levels across Hampshire and Isle of Wight, even 
during the third wave. Two week wait referrals are now at 96% of previous levels and we 
have arranged extra capacity to see these patients. 
 
The following page includes information covering the COVID-19 period for the whole 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight area covering NHS 111 and inpatient/discharge data.  
 
GP practices in the city continue to work hard to safely deliver care to our population.  
The total number of appointments in primary care in Southampton is above pre-COVID 
levels.  We have seen a significant increase in appointments by phone or online (e.g. video 
conference), but face-to-face appointments remain available to patients if clinically 
necessary.  The data below indicates the change in appointment types in Southampton 
using the most recent data available to us: 
 

 
 

When contacting primary care, patients may be asked to discuss their conditions over the 
phone or online first to assess what would be most appropriate for them. Patients that do 
visit are asked to avoid waiting rooms or queuing and arrive at the time of the appointment. 
They are also asked to wear a mask, wash their hands before arriving and to socially 
distance. Patients are able to access their GP by phoning or contacting them online to 
arrange to speak to a GP or nurse over the phone or via video link as soon as possible.  
 

Since December primary care in Southampton has been at the forefront of the COVID-19 
vaccination programme.  This amazing achievement is the result of a massive amount of 
hard work and careful coordination by NHS teams, backed up by an army of volunteers who 
have given vital support. 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



We are hugely grateful for the support NHS services and staff in Southampton have received 
from patients and volunteers.  Thank you. 
 
Stephanie Ramsey 
Managing Director, NHS Southampton City Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
 

The following graphs show the number of NHS 111 calls, NHS 111 online contacts and 999 
calls with potential COVID-19 symptoms across Hampshire and Isle of Wight: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 18



The following graphs show the number of inpatients diagnosed with COVID-19, the number 
admitted with COVID-19, the number admitted with suspected COVID-19 and the number of 
patients with COVID-19 discharged. The third wave of COVID-19 saw a marked increase in 
case numbers, hospital admissions, general bed use and ITU bed use. At the peak of this 
wave bed use was more than double that of wave one, and currently (9 February, 2021) is 
still 1.8 times the peak of wave one. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER:  HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

SUBJECT: SOUTHAMPTON SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20  

DATE OF DECISION: 4 MARCH 2021 

REPORT OF: INDEPENDENT CHAIR OF THE SOUTHAMPTON 
SAFEGUARDING ADULT BOARD  

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Independent Chair   Title Independent Chair of the Southampton 
Safeguarding Adults Board 

 Name:  Deborah Stuart-Angus   Tel: 023 8083 2468 

 E-mail: Safeguarding.partnershipsteam@southampton.gov.uk 

Author: Title Southampton Safeguarding Partnership Manager  

 Name:  Debbie Key  Tel: 023 8083 2468 

 E-mail: Deborah.key@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

The Annual Report provides the Panel with an update on the work of the Southampton 
Safeguarding Adults Board (SSAB) during 2019/20. The Annual Report is a 
requirement of the Care and Support Guidance, the Care Act 2014.  

The attached SSAB Annual Report was published in December 2020. The Panel is 
asked to consider the SSAB Annual Report and present any questions on the content.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

 (i) That the Panel receive the Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board 
Annual Report to inform the work of the Panel. 

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To ensure the information contained in the report is used to support the 
scrutiny function. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. None  

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The SSAB 2019/20 Annual report, attached as Appendix 1, was published in 
December 2020.  The Independent Chair of the Partnership will be in 
attendance at the meeting to answer questions from the Panel relating to the 
contents of the report and the SSAB. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  
Page 21

Agenda Item 8



4. None 

Property/Other 

5. None  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

6. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Part 1A Section 9 of 
the Local Government Act 2000.  

Other Legal Implications:  

7. The Annual Report is a requirement of the Care and Support Guidance, the 
Care Act 2014. 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

8. Consideration of the 2019/20 SSAB Annual Report will help to target the work 
of the Scrutiny Panel to ensure that focus is directed at improving 
safeguarding outcomes for adults in Southampton. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

9. Supporting the effectiveness of the political scrutiny of adult safeguarding will 
help contribute to the following outcomes within the Council Strategy:  
Start well, live well, age well, die well; working with other partners and other 
services to make sure that customers get the right help at the right time. 

 

KEY DECISION?  No  

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. SSCP Annual Report 2019/20 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out? 

No 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out? 

No 

Other Background Documents: 

Other Background documents available for inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 Page 22



1 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 

2019-20 

 
023 8083 2995          @SPSouthampton   

   

          lsab@southampton.gov.uk    www.southamptonlsab.org.uk 

 

 

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

mailto:lsab@southampton.gov.uk
http://www.southamptonlsab.org.uk/


2 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 

Contents 
Chair’s Foreword 3 

1. Introduction 4 

What does Safeguarding Mean? 4 

Who are we and what are our lawful responsibilities? 4 

Demographics and Population 4 

Health and Equalities 5 

2.  Safeguarding Adults Data 7 

Type of Abuse and Location 10 

Risk Outcomes 11 

3. Engagement with practitioners and communities 12 

Safeguarding Partnerships Conference – Adopting a Family Approach 12 

Safeguarding Adults Week 2019 13 

4LSAB Animated Scribe Project 13 

The Safeguarding Partnerships Training Programme 14 

4. Priority Issues for Southampton SAB 2019-20 15 

5. Learning from Reviews 18 

Adult P - Safeguarding Adult Review 18 

Marie - Multiagency Review 19 

Case Review Action Plans 21 

6. Next Steps and Priorities for 2020-21 22 

COVID-19 Response 22 

7. Reporting Adult Safeguarding Concerns 24 

What you can do if you think someone is being abused 24 

What will happen next? 24 

Appendices 25 

Appendix 1 SAB Finance 25 

Appendix 2 Board Members Attendance 25 

Appendix 3 Glossary 26 

Appendix 4 - Southampton SAB Structure Chart 2019-20 27 

Appendix 5 LSAB Functions 28 

 

  

Page 24



3 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 

Chair’s Foreword  

Thank you for your interest in the work of Southampton’s Safeguarding Adult Partnership and its 

Statutory Board. I was appointed as Independent Chair in January 2020 and it gives me great 

pleasure to introduce our 2019- 20 Annual Report.  

Here you will find accounts of previous achievements from 2019, along with our annual statistics in 

relation to safeguarding activity and detailed outcomes from Safeguarding Adult Reviews, as well as 

a brief thematic analysis, about lessons learned. 

Between January and March 2020, our partnership quickly got to work and identified the need for 

clear strategic aims; a safeguarding adult strategy refresh; a new business plan and a keen desire to 

act and work locally.  This has set future priorities of prevention, learning and quality and the 

foundations for Southampton Safeguarding Adult’s Board to focus on local need and local safety. 

We will still work collaboratively with the Isle of Wight, Hampshire and Portsmouth Boards, but we 

will also adopt a very local focus on the needs of our particular population, with the backdrop of our 

unique demographic picture, and our very specific safeguarding adult at risk profile. I hope to be 

able to report more on this in our 2020-21 Annual Report.  

Going forward this report will reflect more on its partnership achievements, and addresses the huge 

range of activity and continued endeavor, clearly demonstrated in combined efforts to enable the 

people of Southampton City to live safe lives.  

My intention has been, and will continue to be, to work very closely and collaboratively, with this 

committed partnership, moving us forward to our next natural stage of development. We will take 

forward the lessons learned from both Southampton and national Safeguarding Adult Reviews, and 

in February this year we engaged with the Department of Health and Social Care Research Project 

regarding the national thematic analysis from Safeguarding Adult Reviews and the associated 

learning. 

 I am proud to say that from our very close working during the COVID-19 pandemic, true partnership 

with Southampton CCG, Hampshire Constabulary and Southampton City Adult Social Care, and other 

partners, really came into its own and I will work to embed that spirit in all that we do. 

Our new approach will lead to a more robust Board decision making, stronger, more connected 

governance, make safeguarding more personal, make quality outcomes focus on local outcomes, 

and in future, we will set out a Board structure, that is fit for purpose to deliver well on our shared 

partner safeguarding priorities. 

So far, I have been more than impressed by the dedication of many of our Board Members; the 

excellent practice in our Case Review Group, the supportive approach for Board management and 

the forging of ideas across the four Boards. All of our partners have faced significant challenge and 

had to practice in unprecedented circumstances, yet they have continued to deliver well, and have 

shown great commitment to both continuous improvement; strategic alignment and producing 

quality outcomes for people at risk. My personal thanks go to these people.   

 

Deborah Stuart-Angus, BSc(Hons) CQSW Cert.Ed. Dip.App.SS 
The Independent Chair, Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board  

Page 25



4 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

1. Introduction 

What does Safeguarding Mean? 

“Safeguarding means protecting an adult’s right to live in safety, free from abuse and neglect. It is 
about people and organisations working together to prevent and stop both the risks and experience 
of abuse or neglect, while at the time making sure that the adult’s wellbeing is promoted including, 
where appropriate, having regard to their views, wishes, feelings and beliefs in deciding on any 
action.” (Care Act 2014)  

Who are we and what are our lawful responsibilities?  

Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board (SSAB) is group of partners who come together to co-
ordinate work to safeguard and promote the welfare of adults in Southampton city. The main 
objective of the SSAB is to assure itself that local safeguarding arrangements and partners help and 
protect adults at risk of harm in Southampton. It also aims to ensure that safeguarding activities are 
of a high quality and in line with the Care Act 2014. The Board is a statutory partnership, which 
includes, Southampton City Council, Hampshire Constabulary, Southampton City Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) and other agencies that work with adults with care and support needs. 
It is important that SSAB partners are able to challenge each other and other organisations where it 
is deemed that their actions or inaction, increase the risk of abuse or neglect. This will include 
commissioners, as well as providers of services.  

Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board has 3 core duties: 

• ‘it must publish a strategic plan for each financial year that sets how it will meet its main 
objective and what the members will do to achieve this. The plan must be developed with local 
community involvement, and the SSAB must consult the local Healthwatch organisation. The plan 
should be evidence based and make use of all available evidence and intelligence from partners 
to form and develop its plan. 

• it must publish an annual report detailing what the SSAB has done during the year to achieve its 
main objective and implement its strategic plan, and what each member has done to implement 
the strategy as well as detailing the findings of any safeguarding adults reviews and subsequent 
action. 

• it must conduct any safeguarding adults review in accordance with Section 44 of the Act.’ 
 
(Section 14.136 Care and Support Guidance, The Care Act 2014) 

Southampton SAB also works within the ‘4LSAB’ area of Southampton, Portsmouth, Hampshire and 
Isle of Wight. The 4 areas share common safeguarding policies, procedures and guidance for staff to 
work to. Southampton SAB participates in several cross area groups as represented in the diagram at 
the end of this document and going forward Southampton from 2020 will be developing a City-wide 
local focus.  

Demographics and Population 

The current population of Southampton is 252,8001, with: 

• 53,000 residents who are not white British (22.3%) 

• 43,000 students 

• Approximately 22% of Southampton residents are non-white British, of which 14% are Black 

and Minority Ethnic (BAME). 

 
1 Source: LG Inform, 2019 

Page 26



5 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Whilst Southampton has achieved significant economic growth in the last few years in line with the 

South East region, the city’s characteristics relating to poverty and deprivation present challenges, 

more in common with other urban areas across the country that have high levels of deprivation. In 

2017 it was estimated that 34,781 of Southampton residents were over the age of 65 and people 

living in the most deprived areas in Southampton are almost twice as likely to die prematurely 

(under 75 years old), than those in the most affluent.  In Southampton, as nationally, life expectancy 

is increasing and more people are living longer.  The older population is projected to grow 

proportionately more than any other group in Southampton, over the next few years.  

Health and Equalities 

More adults in Southampton live in poverty than the national average (19.7% for Southampton, 
compared to 12.5% for the surrounding Hampshire area, and 16.8% as the national average). Since 
2010 Southampton has become more deprived and in 2015 it was ranked 67th out of 326 Local 
Authorities in England, with 1 being the most deprived.  The City is a patchwork of deprivation and 
pockets of affluence. It has 19 neighbourhood areas (known as Lower Super Output Areas) which are 
within the 10% most deprived in England and none in the least deprived.  The map below shows the 
most (red) and least (blue) deprived areas in the city: 
 

 
 
The health of people in Southampton is generally worse than the England average. 20.1% (8,905) of 

children live in low-income families. Life expectancy for both men and women is lower than the 

England average. Life expectancy is 8.7 years lower for men and 4.8 years lower for women in the 

most deprived areas of Southampton than in the least deprived areas.2 

The rate for alcohol-related harm hospital admissions is 7193, worse than the average for England. 
This represents 1,550 admissions per year. The rate for self-harm hospital admissions is 323*, worse 
than the average for England. This represents 876 admissions per year. The rates of new sexually 
transmitted infections, killed and seriously injured on roads and new cases of tuberculosis are worse 
than the England average. The rates of violent crime (hospital admissions for violence), under 75 
mortality rates from cardiovascular diseases and under 75 mortality rates from cancer are worse 
than the England average4.  

 
2 Public Health England – Local Authority Health Profile 2019 
3 Rate per 100,000 population 
4 Public Health England – Local Authority Health Profile 2019 

Page 27



6 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

  

Page 28



7 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

2.  Safeguarding Adults Data  

The following data is taken from the Safeguarding Adults Collection for the year 2019-20.  In some 

cases, comparing Southampton’s 2018/19, 2017/18, 2016/17 and 2019-20 data with the national 

data available at the time of completion.  This data is submitted to the Department of Health and 

Social Care on an annual basis.  

In 2019/20 there were 3894 concerns which is a 67.5% increase from the 2325 reported in 2018/19. 
This increase is due to changes in practice introduced following the 2019 Local Government 
Association Peer Review.  Practice was changed to ensure that all relevant referrals were triaged, and 
decision making documented.  

The average no. of concerns per 100,000 population in the South East Region is 888.55 compared to 

the national average of 942.8. The increase in safeguarding concerns in 2019/20 will result in 

Southampton having 1900 concerns per 100,000 population. 

 

  

Counts of Safeguarding Activity 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 

    

Total Number of Safeguarding Concerns 3,894 2,325 1,695 
Total Number of Section 42 Safeguarding 
Enquiries 582 387 442 

Total Number of Other Safeguarding Enquiries 
151 181 326 

3,894

575

150

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000

TOTAL NUMBER OF SAFEGUARDING CONCERNS

TOTAL NUMBER OF SECTION 42 SAFEGUARDING 
ENQUIRIES

TOTAL NUMBER OF OTHER SAFEGUARDING ENQUIRIES

Count of Southampton Safeguarding Activity 2019-20

Section 42 Enquiries (Care Act 2014) a local authority has a duty to make enquiries or cause 

others to make enquiries in cases where it has reasonable cause to suspect: 

• An adult has needs for care and support (whether or not the local authority is meeting 
any of those needs) and 

• Is experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect and  

• As a result of those care and support needs, is unable to protect themselves from either 
the risk of, or experience of, abuse or neglect.  

 

Page 29



8 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Of the individuals involved in Section 42 Safeguarding Enquiries in 2019-20, 47% were for men and 

53% were for women. This is an increase of 3% for males compared to the reported figures last year, 

which were 44% male, 56% female. Southampton’s gender profile is also broadly in line with the 

national gender profile of 40:60 men to women and Southampton population profile of 51% male 

and 49% female. 

 

As the chart above shows, the majority of individuals involved in Section 42 Safeguarding Enquiries 

were raised for adults of White ethnicity, at 82%, this compares to 88% last year, and a national 

average of 82.7%.  There is an increase in Section 42 Enquiries raised for adults of Asian/Asian British 

ethnicity from 2% last year to 5%. The category of ‘undeclared/unknown’ has also increased this 

year from 6% last year to 10%.  

In 2019/20 there were 733 safeguarding enquiries, 582 section 42 enquiries and 151 

other/discretionary enquiries. This is a 29.0 % increase from 2018/19 (568 enquiries). The proportion 

of section 42 enquiries as a total of all enquiries is 79% which is an increase from 68% in 2018/19. 

Due to the changes in the recording safeguarding concerns, there has been an impact on the 

conversion rate from concern to enquiry. The conversion rate has reduced from 24.4% in 2018/19 to 

18.8% in 2019/20. The table below shows the South East region (2018/19) conversion rates: 

 

82%

1%

5%

1%

1%

0%

10%

Section 42 enquiry by Ethnicity 2019-20

White

Mixed / Multiple

Asian / Asian British

Black / African / Caribbean / Black
British

Other Ethnic Group

Refused

Undeclared / Not Known

Male
47%

Female
53%

Section 42 enquiries by Gender 2019-20

Page 30



9 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 

2018/19 Concern to Enquiry Conversion Benchmarking 

population 
conversion rate 
from concern to 
enquiry 

Brighton & Hove City Council 100.0% 

West Berkshire District Council 76.8% 

Kent County Council 60.3% 

Surrey County Council 59.3% 

Buckinghamshire County Council 53.8% 

Medway Council 50.5% 

Reading Borough Council 50.5% 

Isle of Wight Council 47.4% 

Wokingham Borough Council 39.3% 

Hampshire County Council 37.1% 

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 36.6% 

West Sussex County Council 33.3% 

Bracknell Forest Borough Council 32.6% 

Southampton City Council 24.4% 

Oxfordshire County Council 24.1% 

East Sussex County Council 23.2% 

Milton Keynes Council (Unitary) 18.9% 

Slough Borough Council 15.5% 

Portsmouth City Council 12.8% 

 

In England the average conversion rate from Concern to Enquiry is 39% compared to an average of 

45.8% in the South East. 

Section 42 Enquiries 

In 2019/20 there were 582 section 42 enquiries which is a 50.4 % increase compared to 2018/19 (387 

section 42 enquiries). The proportion of section 42 enquiries as a proportion of the total enquiries has 

increased to 79% compared with 68% in 2018/19. The table on the next page shows the section 42 

benchmarking for the South East region. 

2018/19 Section 42 Enquiry Benchmarking 

population 
no. of section 42 enquiries 
per 100,000 pop 

Isle of Wight Council 722.02 

West Sussex County Council 498.64 

West Berkshire District Council 443.61 

Reading Borough Council 440.81 

Surrey County Council 434.33 

Kent County Council 402.76 

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 372.77 

Brighton & Hove City Council 371.96 

Wokingham Borough Council 313.69 

Medway Council 292.63 

Milton Keynes Council (Unitary) 244.20 

Oxfordshire County Council 219.96 

Page 31



10 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

East Sussex County Council 200.71 

Southampton City Council 191.31 

Slough Borough Council 183.22 

Portsmouth City Council 151.91 

Bracknell Forest Borough Council 143.37 

Buckinghamshire County Council 94.44 

Hampshire County Council 88.33 

 

Other Enquiries 

In 2019/20 there were 151 Other Enquiries which is a 16.6 % decrease from 2018/19 (181 enquiries). 

These enquiries are for adults at risk who have mental capacity but whose needs/risks are the result 

of addiction/homelessness/mental health and experience coercion and control etc. 

Compared to the South East region Southampton undertakes the highest proportion of Other 

Enquiries per 100,000 population. 

2018/19 Other/Discretionary Enquiry Benchmarking 

population 
no. of other 

enquiries 

no. of other 
enquiries per 
100,000 pop 

Southampton City Council  181  89.44 

Kent County Council 840 67.87 

Medway Council 75 35.12 

Slough Borough Council 35 32.89 

East Sussex County Council 135 29.94 

Milton Keynes Council (Unitary) 35 17.44 

Buckinghamshire County Council 60 14.35 

West Sussex County Council 95 13.81 

Isle of Wight Council 15 12.82 

Reading Borough Council 10 8.01 

Bracknell Forest Borough Council 5 5.31 

Surrey County Council 40 4.29 

Wokingham Borough Council 5 3.83 

Hampshire County Council 40 3.64 

Portsmouth City Council 5 2.92 

Oxfordshire County Council 0 0.00 

West Berkshire District Council 0 0.00 

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 0 0.00 

Brighton & Hove City Council 0 0.00 

 

Data Quality Issues 

There were 48 individuals involved in both s42 and discretionary enquiries that did not have 

ethnicity recorded and for 19 individuals, a Primary Support Reason was not recorded. Each of these 

cases have been manually checked on the Service User Database, to identify if relevant information 

was stored elsewhere and work has been completed in 2020 to improve recording. 

 

Type of Abuse and Location 
The most prevalent categories of abuse in Southampton, based on concluded Section 42 Enquiries 
are neglect and acts of omission which reflects the national picture. This is followed by financial, 
physical, and organisational abuse.  
 

Page 32



11 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 

The table above indicates that the most common location for concern was the adults’ own home, 

followed by Care Home – Nursing and Residential and again this reflects the national picture and 

recent years data for the City.  This year there has been an increase in numbers of location of risk 

recorded in the community (excluding community services and within acute hospital setting). 

Risk Outcomes 

The table below shows the outcomes for individuals who were faced with risk, (taken from 

concluded S42 enquiries): 

Outcome 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 

Risk Remained 13.4 % 13.4% 6.9% 

Risk Reduced 66.0% 68.4% 58.9% 

Risks Removed 20.6 % 18.2% 34.2% 

  

 
Location of risk 

Concluded Section 
42 Enquiries  

2019-20 

Concluded Section 
42 Enquiries  

2018-19 

Own Home 271 237 

In the community (excluding community services) 70 34 

In a community service 16 7 

Care Home - Nursing 48 26 

Care Home - Residential 98 94 

Hospital - Acute 62 26 

Hospital - Mental Health 4 0 

Hospital - Community 1 1 

Other 34 13 

Page 33



12 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

3. Engagement with practitioners and communities 

The SSAB engages with the public, professionals and families throughout the year in various ways, to 

ensure our work is focused on placing people who are at risk, at the centre of our decision making 

and safeguarding activity. 

Public awareness raising takes place through public facing events and activities, including road 

shows, training events and exhibitions as well as direct messaging through social media. During the 

year the SSAB delivered activities and awareness raising to mark the following events: 

• White Ribbon Day 

• Maternal Mental Health Month 

• Hampshire Police Never Choose Knives campaign 

• Safer Internet Day 

• FGM Zero Tolerance Day  

• Scams Awareness 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Safeguarding Partnerships Conference – Adopting a Family Approach  

In June 2019 over 150 of our practitioners attended 

a conference to launch the Pan-Hampshire Family 

Approach Protocol. Speakers included Ryan Hart 

from the charity CoCo Awareness talking about his 

family’s experience of coercive control, and 

Detective Superintendent Rachel Farrell from 

Hampshire Constabulary, presented on Adverse 

Childhood Experiences and Trauma Informed 

Practice. Practitioner Workshops were: 

• Adult mental health and impact on children 

• Domestic abuse: working with perpetrators 

• Restorative Practice and Adverse Childhood 

Experiences 

• Impact of substance misuse and alcohol on children and families 

The conference brought together local practitioners from practice with adults, children and families 

and an evaluation of the day evidenced that those who attended felt more confident to consider a 

family approach to safeguarding in daily practice.  

 

Page 34



13 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Safeguarding Adults Week 2019  

In November 2019 Southampton, Portsmouth, 

Isle of Wight and Hampshire SAB’s collaborated 

on a campaign for national Safeguarding Adults 

Week. The beginning of the week saw the 

publication and launch event of 4LSAB Multi 

Agency Hoarding Protocol which was 

developed jointly with Radian (Local Housing 

Association). The protocol details local and 

national guidance for practitioners including a 

clutter rating scale.  

Locally Southampton SAB launched the ‘Spot the Signs and Speak Out’ campaign highlighting 

different types of abuse and neglect, throughout the week. The campaign was designed and 

supported by Southampton City Council and Southampton City Clinical Commissioning Group 

Communication’s Teams in response to the SAB’s strategic plan to work in partnership to raise 

awareness of adult safeguarding and build on our community resilience. A resource pack was 

created for SSAB partners to use and to promote to communities and practitioners. Southampton 

SAB also visited University Hospital Southampton to take part in a week long programme of 

engagement events, providing signposting and resources, to staff and community members. 

 

 

4LSAB Animated Scribe Project 

The 4LSAB animated scribe Safeguarding Adults Video was promoted by the 4LSAB’s during the week 

across social media platforms and circulated to partners. The video was designed to engage 

members of the public, practitioners 

and volunteers to promote 

safeguarding adults, and increase 

confidence and knowledge of how and 

when to report concerns. Southampton 

SAB consulted with Choices Advocacy 

Busy People User Group on the format, 

content and structure as reported in 

the Annual Report 2018-19. The video is 

available on You Tube and the 

Southampton SAB website.  

 

 

Page 35

http://www.hampshiresab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/4LSAB-Multi-agency-hoarding-Guidance-FINAL-2019-1.pdf
http://www.hampshiresab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/4LSAB-Multi-agency-hoarding-Guidance-FINAL-2019-1.pdf
http://southamptonlsab.org.uk/what-is-safeguarding/


14 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Southampton Safeguarding Partnerships Training Programme 

The SSAB works closely with the Southampton Safeguarding Children Partnership to provide a 

coordinated, joint training offer. This enables a family approach to be taken via the training, and 

offers networking opportunities across both he disciplines.  It includes 2-hour ‘weekly Wednesday 

workshops’, covering:  

• County Lines  

• Trafficking 

• Mental Health 

• Fire Safety 

There is good attendance averaging 25 attendees for each session and regular half-day sessions are 

held on topics of local and national interest which have included: 

• Learning from Safeguarding Adult Reviews and Serious Case Reviews 

• Harmful Cultural Practice; Female Genital Mutilation, Forced Marriage and Honour Based 

Violence 

• An Introduction to Neglect 

• Child Sexual Exploitation and Criminal Exploitation 

Weekly workshops and half day sessions had to be unfortunately reduced owing to a lack of 

administrative capacity in the Safeguarding Partnerships Team. Attendance was also affected by   

the Covid-19 pandemic, however there is a history of good attendance and positive feedback and 

going forward the new Adult Safeguarding Strategy will be taking into consideration the value of e-

learning and technology to increase access to training.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



15 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

4. Priority Issues for Southampton SAB 2019-20 

The SAB set the following key priorities for 2019-20: Mental Capacity Act and Multi Agency Risk 

Management; Self-Neglect and the interface with Homelessness; Alcohol and Substance misuse; A 

Family Approach to Safeguarding, and Making Safeguarding Personal. Below is a summary of the 

service assurance provided by partners and what the SSAB partnership have delivered in relation to 

these themes: 

 
 
Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and Multiagency Risk Management  
 

 

• The 4LSAB Workforce Development Group agreed the Multiagency Risk Management Framework 
(and associated tools) and Mental Capacity Act (MCA) as a priority area to focus on for 2020. 
 

• The 4LSAB Quality Assurance Group completed an audit of local and pan Hampshire responses to 
organisational audits which included a separate report on applying MCA in practice. The audit 
returns identified that further work and training is required in terms of deploying the MCA; it’s 
understanding, and compliance with the Act, along with a need to implement the MCA toolkit across 
agencies. 

 

• The Multi Agency Risk Management tools have been redeveloped, which includes proforma 
documentation regarding format and structure, along with guidance on chairing a multi-agency risk 
management meeting. (This protocol has been included as an appendix in the revised 4LSAB 
Multiagency Safeguarding Adults Policy, launched in June 2020). 

 

• Southampton SAB is aware of the new Liberty Protection Safeguards, soon to replace the Deprivation 
of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS), a previous Amend to the Mental Capacity Act 2005. This is in relation to 
the prevention of depriving a person of their liberty and what safeguards must go into place when a 
deprivation has to occur for the person’s own safety, if they cannot make their own capacitated 
decision. The recent Mental Capacity Amendment Bill, was launched in early 2019 and LPS were due 
from October 2020. However due to the COVID-19 pandemic this is delayed until October 2022. The 
main changes will be: 

✓ LPS will apply to everyone from the age of 16 upwards (DoLS applies from the age of 18) 
✓ LPS will apply in all settings including a person’s own home 
✓ Under LPS everybody has the right to an advocate  
✓ To simplify the legal framework 
✓ To improves outcomes for service users  
✓ To enable a consistent authorisation process across settings 
✓ To implement good MCA practice as intended at ground level 

 
There is a shared responsibility for LPS between Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups and 
hospitals and a Hampshire and Isle of Wight LPS steering group has been working on joint publicity 
material. 

• Southampton City Council Adult Social Care commissioned new safeguarding adults and MCA training 
from Making Connections. The training has received positive feedback and has been offered to 
providers and volunteers. Southampton SAB is looking to offer this training as part of its joint 
multiagency training offer in the future. 
 

Page 37

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjgoIuimfHcAhXEz4UKHcmMBV0QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://css-tricks.com/three-line-menu-navicon/&psig=AOvVaw1WnrQnPKiLScYjjUICOT0M&ust=1534496001506158


16 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 
 
Making Safeguarding Personal  
 
 
 

• By means of a quick reminder, Making Safeguarding Personal is an initiative which aims to 
develop an 'outcome focus' to safeguarding activity, as well as a range of responses to support 
people to improve or resolve their circumstances. It is a personalised approach that 
enables safeguarding to be done ‘with’, and not ‘to, people. It is a personalised approach that 
considers what the person wants as an outcome from safeguarding intervention and should 
consider the person’s strengths and their networks. It’s about involvement and participation, and 
seeing the person, not the process. 
 

• The 4LSAB Workforce Development Group agreed Family Approach to Safeguarding, Risk 
Management Framework, Mental Capacity Act and Self-Neglect in terms of multi-agency 
safeguarding training needs across the 4LSAB area. It was agreed that Making Safeguarding 
Personal would run as a golden thread through all these topics and any priority areas agreed in 
the future. 
 

• The 4LSAB Quality Assurance Group delivered a survey to practitioners regarding Making 
Safeguarding Personal to gain a base line understanding of practitioner confidence and how this 
is integrated in to their practice. The Isle of Wight Safeguarding Adult Board facilitated an MSP 
workshop in 2019 which reported on responses and findings and produced an action plan, 
actions from which have been fed in to the 4LSAB subgroups and the 4 Safeguarding Adult 
Boards to progress priorities. One of the actions agreed, was to promote the Local Government 
Association Making Safeguarding Personal Toolkit. 
 

• A peer review of Southampton Adult Social Care recognised a priority area for development was 
embedding personalisation and strengths-based practice across the service. Whilst many 
practitioners are proactive and the is awareness of good practice examples, the need to embed 
strengths based approaches consistently into practice, remains. 

 

 
 
Family Approach to Safeguarding 
 
 

• Southampton Safeguarding Partnerships – the Safeguarding Adult Board and Safeguarding 
Children Partnership held a joint conference in June 2019 titled ‘Adopting a Family Approach’. 
The Family Approach Toolkit was launched and promoted to Southampton practitioner and there 
has been continued promotion of the toolkit in training and resources by the partnerships. 
 

• Across the Pan Hampshire Safeguarding Adult Board’s and Safeguarding Children Partnerships 
One Minute Guide’s for all aspects of safeguarding, have been produced and published. 

 

• The 4LSAB Workforce Development Group agreed the Family Approach to Safeguarding as a 
priority area for focus in 2020. 
 

• An audit of Transition from Children’s Mental Health Services to Adult Mental Health Services 
was commissioned by the Southampton Safeguarding Partnerships and the report was presented 
to the SAB in October 2019. The audit sought to evaluate how case information for those 
requiring mental health support is passed from a child service to an adult service, as young 
people had highlighted that their transition from children’s to adult services had not always gone 
smoothly, particularly for those who needed to access mental health services.  Information was 
requested from agencies to assess the creation of transition plans, along with the level and 

Page 38

https://www.local.gov.uk/msp-toolkit
https://www.local.gov.uk/msp-toolkit
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.shareicon.net/data/512x512/2015/12/24/692592_group_512x512.png&imgrefurl=https://www.shareicon.net/group-people-stick-celebration-raised-arms-stick-man-stick-figure-692592&docid=FyD4WbTWSxYRuM&tbnid=PEd4bHLptDyD_M:&vet=10ahUKEwip_d7NmfHcAhUwx4UKHecpCkIQMwiJAigjMCM..i&w=512&h=512&safe=active&bih=794&biw=1684&q=stick%20people&ved=0ahUKEwip_d7NmfHcAhUwx4UKHecpCkIQMwiJAigjMCM&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=&url=https://svgsilh.com/image/1983516.html&psig=AOvVaw1fcVF_nvhb7Sao-ucBUgQQ&ust=1534496272827671


17 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

quality of engagement and participation with the young person. Questionnaires were sent out, 
and responses were analysed. The audit identified some good practice within services in creating 
transition and discharge plans, however, there was limited evidence of multi-agency working in 
such circumstances, and it appears that the multiple recording systems limited access to care 
plans by professionals. Recommendations have been made to raise awareness of the importance 
of effective transition planning, improved multi-agency working, and how to address problems 
with communication and record keeping. Both the SSAB and the Safeguarding Children’s 
Arrangements remain committed to continuous improvement in relation to the audit outcomes. 

 
 
 
Self-Neglect and interface with homelessness, alcohol and substance misuse 
 

 
 

• The 4LSAB Policy Implementation Group started work to revise the Multi-agency Safeguarding 
Adult’s Policy in Summer 2019. As part of this work the current 4LSAB Self Neglect policy is also 
being updated considering current research, case law and legislative interpretation of the Care 
Act and Mental Capacity Act. Southampton took the lead to complete work on the policy, but 
due to capacity issues across the partnerships, during COVID-19, production of a draft revised 
version was delayed, but due in Autumn 2020.  
 

• In November 2019 Southampton SAB took part in National Safeguarding Adults week with a 
range of community engagement and safeguarding adult awareness raising activities. During the 
week the 4LSAB Fire Safety Development Group held a launch in partnership with Radian 
Housing, called ‘Taking the heat out of hoarding’, helping to recognise the links between 
hoarding and fire safety. The group identified the key agencies to target through a fire death 
analysis carried out over 3 years. There was a high proportion where hoarding was identified as a 
significant risk factor and people presenting with poor mental health.  Among others the 
campaign is targeted mental health practitioners, housing, and public health.  The launch event 
culminated in the publication of the 4LSAB Multiagency Hoarding Guidance. 

 

• Southampton SAB have promoted the use of the Escalation Policy for proactive challenge within 
the partnership. The policy should be used for safeguarding partner practice issues, not for other 
matters (individual practitioner performance is not part of the scope of this document). 

 
 

Page 39



18 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

5. Learning from Reviews  

When there is a failure to safeguard people, results can be severe and tragic. In order to learn 

lessons and prevent future similar tragedies from occurring, SABs have a statutory duty to host a 

Safeguarding Adult Review, in order to assess how agencies worked together. The Statutory 

guidance dictates that a SAB must decide when a case review needs to be commissioned so that all 

organisations involved can contribute and build on their development to improve, through action 

planning. It is also the duty of the SSAB to hold partners to account in relation to achieving the 

aforesaid associated outcomes. In accordance with the Care Act 2014 a Safeguarding Adult Review 

(SAR) must be commissioned if: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If a case is referred but is not deemed to meet the statutory SAR criteria, it may still be considered as 

a different type of review such as a multi-agency partnership review or a single agency review. The 

Southampton SAB Case Review Group has a key part in overseeing this activity and decision making 

and ensuring that learning is gathered and disseminated widely amongst professionals. All final 

decisions however rest with the Independent Chair. 

In 2019-20 the SAB received 11 case referrals for Safeguarding Adult Review; 2 cases have been 

progressed to Statutory Safeguarding Adult Review and 3 cases were progressed for a discretionary 

review. Unfortunately, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and in line with guidance received by NHS 

England, all safeguarding adult review work was suspended at the end of March 2020 and therefore 

progression and delivery of review reports will be delayed.  An update on the learning and 

improvement from these reviews will be detailed in the 2020-21 SAB annual report.  

We reported on 1 review that took place during 2019-20 in the Safeguarding Adult Collection (SAC) for 

the Department of Health and Social Care. 

SSAB concluded 2 learning reviews in 2019-20.  Learning from the reviews is disseminated to the local 

partnership and to practitioners, in various ways, as summarised below: 

Adult P - Safeguarding Adult Review  

The SAR for ‘Adult P’ was commissioned after an incident in 2014, where tragically Adult P died from 
injuries following a serious sexual assault. Adult P was known to services and had a history of alcohol 
dependency, homelessness, and substantial self-neglect. There was also some concern about 
financial and sexual exploitation, by others toward Adult P.  The full overview report for this case was 
published on the Southampton LSAB website, alongside a 6 Step summary briefing to aid in 
dissemination of the learning.   
 

There is reasonable cause for concern about how the SAB, its members or organisations 

worked together to safeguard the adult 

AND 

b) The person died and the SAB knows/suspects this resulted from abuse or neglect (whether 

or not it knew about this before the person died) 

OR 

 c) The person is still alive but the Safeguarding Adults Board knows or suspects they’ve 

experienced serious abuse/neglect, sustained potentially life threatening injury, serious 

sexual abuse or serious/permanent impairment of health or development. 

Page 40

http://southamptonlsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Adult-P-SAR-overview-report-Final.pdf
http://southamptonlsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Adult-P-SAR-briefing.pdf


19 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Marie - Multiagency Review 

In 2017, the Southampton LSAB considered the case of ‘Marie’ (pseudonym) and determined that 
the Statutory Criteria for Safeguarding Adult Review (Section 44, Care Act 2014) was not met but 
that significant learning may be gained from carrying out a multi-agency review. Marie had complex 
needs; she had learning disabilities and a mental health diagnosis. The decision not to publish the full 
report was taken by SSAB, in order to protect Marie as a surviving victim. A 6 Step Summary briefing 
of the case is available on the LSAB website.  
 
Follow up and Learning  

All recommendations and actions from Case Reviews are transferred into actions for the services to 

deploy via planning. Their progress in implementing plans is monitored by the SSAB’s Case Review 

Group. The SSAB seek to ensure that all staff are aware of the shared learning and managers are 

responsible for disseminating this in supervision, to prevent similar outcomes for adults at risk of 

harm, abuse or neglect.  

Learning identified throughout the case review process is disseminated to relevant organisations as 

soon as it becomes available. This is to ensure lessons learned are acted upon as soon as possible to 

improve practice, policies and systems management and to reduce the risk of similar tragedies 

occurring again. In addition, the SSAB collates learning according to identified themes, which is 

cascaded to board members and wider audiences, as appropriate.   

The themes identified this year through case reviews and audit work are summarised below. They 

influence regular ‘Learning from Case Reviews’ briefings and workshops hosted by SSAB. Themes so 

far have been: 

The need for effective communication between agencies and with service users 
• The lead professional for an individual should establish the roles and responsibilities of each 

professional and family member involved, to ensure common goals in decision making and care 

planning. Effective communication and healthy working relationships are an important part of 

good multiagency practice. 

• Practitioners need to remember that safeguarding/adult protection overrides data protection 

legislation 

 
Listening to the voice of the adult and making safeguarding personal  
• Practitioners need to see the adult at risk and consider the context of any exploitation and 

abuse and to effectively consider the daily, lived experience of the adult at risk i.e. impact of 

abuse and neglect and the potential long term significant harm it can cause.  

• There is a need to ensure that non-verbal communication from an adult at risk are integral to 

assessing responses in safeguarding interventions. 

• It is important for adults at risk to know about and access local advocacy services so that 

people’s decisions are clear in relation to planning for their health, care and wellbeing. 

• Accessing Local Government Association Making Safeguarding Toolkit supports practitioners to 

adopt a strength based approach when working within Safeguarding Adults and is vital to 

safeguarding work 

 
Taking a family approach - Including risks from 'Trigger Trio' of domestic violence, substance misuse, 
alcohol and mental health issues.  
• Commonality of the combination of ‘trigger trio’ issues in families, and increased risk of 

significant harm  
• High risks posed to others as well as ‘subject’ of the safeguarding work, including wider family 

members and children  

Page 41

http://southamptonlsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Marie-6-step-briefing.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/msp-toolkit


20 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

• Early identification and intervention can reduce the risk of harm 
• Risk can escalate quickly, particularly where there is a combination of domestic abuse with 

mental health issue or substance misuse  
• There is a need for further understanding of the impact of coercive control on families.   

Escalation  
• Underpins the principle that Safeguarding is everyone’s business ‘until the individual is safe’ 

which is a key factor in promoting the welfare of our adults at risk   
• Practitioners and families need to constructively challenge, if a response is received to concerns, 

which is inadequate. 
• There is a need to raise awareness of the 4LSAB Escalation procedures.  

Disguised Compliance & Hostile families 
• Importance of professional curiosity – encouraging professionals to act on this and triangulate 

findings to test a methodology or hypothesis.  

• Cases show that intentional deception and control of professionals exists with carers /parents, 

minimising or denying abuse and neglect.  

• Practitioners can become over optimistic about progress being achieved, again delaying timely 

interventions for individuals and families. 

• Aggressive/intimidating individuals and family members can influence personal responses. 

Impact of self -neglect 

• Adults can spend long periods of time subject to interventions from services with limited 

impact.  

• Early intervention is a key factor in reducing harm and the long term impact on an individual 

who self-neglects can consequently mean they are at a higher risk of harm. 

• Housing issues such as rent arrears, lack of property maintenance and anti-social behaviour is 

apparent in many self-neglect cases. 

• There is a link between experience of neglect as a child and in adolescence, and then self-

neglect as an adult. 

• Practitioners need to apply the 4LSAB Multi Agency Risk Management Framework in self-neglect 

cases, where the Section 42 threshold is not met.  

 

Using history to inform current practice  

• Existence of quality chronologies with clearly identified risk factors improves outcomes for child 

and adults  

• These need to be more than a simple timeline – include qualitative information, analysis and 

narrative  

• Should be made available to multi-agency professionals to review them at all levels of 

intervention and assessment  

• Need to include patterns or trends noticed for the family/individual and patterns of behaviour, 

crisis times and ‘peaks’ of risk, in order to help predict and prevent future harm  

• Consideration should be given to include previous generational case/family history to form a 

holistic view. 

Regular and Effective supervision  

• Area of repeat concern across agencies in our case reviews 

Each agency should have: 

• A written policy for the supervision of staff  

• A process for handling complaints and disagreements with regards to safeguarding supervision.  

Page 42



21 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

• Safeguarding supervision provided by an appropriately experienced supervisor that is regular, 

planned with protected time & one-to-one or group basis.  

• A written agreement that explains the purpose, value and importance, the roles of the 

supervisor and supervisee, a record should be kept of each session in line with the specific 

organisation’s own supervision policy and/or agreed processes.  

• Decisions should be recorded (or cross-referenced) case file or record. There is a duty to 

escalate the following concerns should they arise within safeguarding supervision discussion:  

o Individuals or family members who may be at risk of significant harm.  

o There is unsafe practice placing people at risk.  

o There is illegal activity.  

Application of Mental Capacity Act 

• The over reliance upon the assumption of mental capacity and the limits of understanding 

mental capacity in more complex cases.  

• This includes where mental capacity may fluctuate due to, for example, substance misuse. 

• Fluctuating capacity impact upon the professional’s assessment of risk and what legal 

framework may be available to protect the individual. 

• Assumption of capacity around the adult understanding the risk from safeguarding concerns 
arising from their current situation. 

• Recording and evidencing mental capacity assessments and using the formal legal tests for 
assessing decisions provides a sound structure. 

• Acknowledgement that Mental Capacity assessments for more complex individuals present a real 
challenge across agencies. 

• Practitioners need to be aware of how factors such as duress or coercion can affect a person’s 
mental capacity and that further expertise and/or legal advice may need to be sought. 

 
Case Review Action Plans 

The SAB translates recommendations from reviews to detailed improvement and action plans that the 
partnership and individual organisations monitor and take action in response to the findings of the 
reviews.  The SAB Case Review Group has oversight of these plans and reviews them regularly.  
  

Page 43



22 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

6. Next Steps and Priorities for 2020-21  

Southampton SAB have had a productive and challenging year co-ordinating quality assurance of 

adult safeguarding activity and promoting the welfare of adults at risk of harm, in the City.  

Following the appointment of the new SSAB Independent Chair, Deborah Stuart-Angus, in January 

2020 work was initiated work on developing partner safeguarding adult priorities and reviewing the 

strategic plan. This review and subsequent discussions held with partners, identified an appetite for 

Board development, for strengthening its position and the need for strategic safeguarding 

improvement. The SSAB is working towards improving the local focus for Southampton City’s 

safeguarding, and its particular local needs such as homelessness; the high number of care homes; a 

large student population; sex working and the risk of exploitation and the requirement for closer 

scrutiny of local safeguarding data.  

By the end of March 2020, we had identified our future priorities as Prevention, Quality and 

Learning, and following partnership consultation and analysis, we are now set to: 

 Set out 21-24 Strategy with shared aims, objectives and a supporting business plan  

 Set out a Board Team workplan 

 Set out a Board structure which is fit for purpose  

 Increase our connectivity with other Boards  

 Revise our Constitution  

 Set up a Risk Register  

 Achieve service user feedback and representation  

 Set out a Coroner’s Protocol  

 Review our SAR methodology, business process and quality system 

COVID-19 Response 

On 11th March 2020 the World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a 

pandemic. During these unprecedented times safeguarding our most vulnerable and at risk adults in 

Southampton has never been more important. The Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board is 

continuing to work in partnership to ensure an effective and timely response to safeguarding issues, 

and have ensured that assurance exists for continuing to deploy Section 42 Care Act duties.  

The SSAB set out its Board Assurance Safeguarding Framework to help monitor the ongoing 

challenge during the COVID-19 pandemic, and partners worked relentlessly, with very high levels of 

co-operation and co-ordination in order to collaborate planning and deploy their safeguarding 

duties. This ensured a robust safeguarding response for people in our communities who may not 

have normally sought support from agencies but who, due to the impact of social distancing and self-

isolation measures, were more at risk, due to life circumstances, for example  homeless and rough 

sleepers; asylum seeker; those with no recourse to public funds; those who had no local connection 

to the area; people with specific disabilities (including mental illness, those using drugs and alcohol); 

those who were socially isolated, and those experiencing domestic abuse, and for adults and 

children, the family approach being of more importance than ever. 

Page 44



23 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

It is important to capture the essence of the very real partnership and collaboration that has been 

witnessed and experienced through integrated working, during Southampton’s shared response to 

managing the pandemic and protecting its most at-risk residents.  

At this this juncture, it will give us a timely opportunity to review our strategic plan, the SSAB 

structure and membership, SSAB governance and Constitution, and to ascertain how Southampton 

SAB is assured that safeguarding adults at risk is effective, and, in order for us to deploy our lawful 

and statutory obligations.  

As a result, a new strategic plan will be developed and will take effect from Spring 2021. 

 

  

Page 45



24 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

7. Reporting Adult Safeguarding Concerns 

If you are worried that an adult may be at risk of abuse or harm please contact Southampton Adult 
Social Care on: 

Email: adultsocialcareconnect@southampton.gov.uk 

 Telephone: 023 8083 3003 

Address: Adult Social Care, Southampton City Council, Civic Centre, Southampton, SO14 7LY 

If an adult at risk is in immediate danger, contact the police by telephoning 999. 

The following will help you understand how reports about safeguarding concerns for adults and 
vulnerable people are dealt with. Please remember that any abuse is unacceptable. If you believe a 
crime has been committed please contact the Police. 

What you can do if you think someone is being abused 

• Take action - don’t assume that someone else is doing something about the situation 

• If anyone is injured get a doctor or ambulance 

• Make a note of your concerns, what happened and any action you take 

• Let us know by either telephoning us or completing our form 

• All safeguarding matters will be dealt with confidentially, though if the issues concern evidence 
of a crime, or unacceptable risk, this may be shared with the appropriate authorities 

• If you think a criminal offence has been committed, contact the police straight away 

• If you think you are being abused or mistreated, contact us, either by phone or by completing 
the form. 

What will happen next? 

Adult Services work closely with other organisations and the person affected to find out as much as 
possible about what has happened. We will do a number of things which might include: 

• Talking to you and other people involved to find out what has happened 

• Planning what to do to safeguard the person being abused 

• Supporting the person and their carers through the process 

• Being available to offer support in the future 

Perhaps you, or someone you know, is being harmed or living in fear of abuse and wants to stay 
safe.  The Speak Out easy read leaflet gives more information on how you can get help.

Page 46

mailto:adultsocialcareconnect@southampton.gov.uk
https://www.southampton.gov.uk/images/speak-out-leaflet-2015-(002)_tcm63-369607.pdf


25 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 SAB Finance  

SAB partners agreed to the following contributions to cover 2019-20 

Board Partner Agency Contribution 2019 - 20 
Southampton City Council 
 

£37,086 

Southampton City CCG  £29,013 

Hampshire Constabulary  £11,072 

Total contributions £77,171.00 

 

Appendix 2 Board Members Attendance 

 

The above graph shows that the majority of agencies had 100% to 75% attendance at SAB meetings. 

Only 3 meetings took place in 2019-20; the SAB meeting which took place in March 2020 was 

attended by funding partner agencies only to discuss strategic response to COVID-19 pandemic. 

Partners such as NHS England, CQC and DWP are not noted as essential partners at every meeting.  

 

 

 

3 3 3 3 3 3 3

2

1 1 1

0 0 0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

M
e

e
ti

n
gs

Partner Agency 

SAB Member attendance 2019-20

Page 47



26 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Appendix 3 Glossary 

 
4LSAB     Joint collective of the SABs from Hampshire, Isle of Wight, Southampton, Portsmouth 

CAMHS     Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

CSE    Child Sexual Exploitation 

DoLS    Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

ED   Emergency Department 

GP   General Practitioner 

Hampshire CRC  Hampshire Crime Rehabilitation Company 

HCC   Hampshire County Council 

HFRS   Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service 

HMPPS   Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Services 

MARAC   Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference 

MASH   Multiagency Safeguarding Hub 

MET   Missing, Exploited and Trafficked 

MSP   Making Safeguarding Personal 

NPS   National Probation Service 

RSH   Royal South Hants Hospital 

SAR    Safeguarding Adult Review 

SCAS    South Central Ambulance Service 

SCC Adult Social Care  Southampton City Council Adult Social Care 

SHFT    Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust 

Southampton City CCG Southampton City clinical Commissioning Group 

Southampton SAB Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board 

Southampton SCP Southampton Safeguarding Children Partnership 

UHS   University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust 

YOS   Youth Offending Services 

 

 

 

Page 48



27 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case Review Group 
 

 

Safeguarding Partnerships 
Business Group  

(Joint with Safeguarding Children 
Partnership) 

 
 

SAB Main 
Board* 

 

Appendix 4 - Southampton SAB Structure Chart 2019-20 

4LSAB 

• Interagency Working Group 

• Policy Implementation Group  

• Quality Assurance Group  

• Workforce Development Group 

• Fire Safety Development Group 
 

*links with Health & Wellbeing 

Board and Southampton 

Safeguarding Children 

Partnership  

P
age 49



28 | P a g e  S o u t h a m p t o n  L S A B  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0 - 2 1  
 

Appendix 5 LSAB Functions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Southampton LSAB Functions 
 
The Main Board is attended by panel of senior officers from all safeguarding partners in the city. Together they form the core decision making body 
for the partnership and have a constitution which details their responsibilities.   
 
The Business Group incorporates Children’s & Adults Boards. It is attended by senior representatives from the three key safeguarding partners 
(Police, Health & Council) plus the Independent Chairs of both Boards.   The Business Group plans for Main Board meetings, receives reports on 
progress from each of the Sub Group Chairs to monitor progress and also controls the budgets for each Board.  
 
The Case Review Group receives referrals for reviews and determines whether they meet criteria for a Case Review and initiates and monitors 
Reviews.  The group ensures that resultant learning is shared with partners to help prevent the circumstances occurring again. 

 
The 4LSAB coordinated work includes: a merged Chair/Strategy Group, a Quality Assurance Group which is closely aligned to other 4LSAB sub 
groups, a Policy Implementation Group and a Workforce Development Group, which is looking at merging adults’ workforce development. 

 
 
 

P
age 50



DECISION-MAKER:  HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

SUBJECT: ADULT SOCIAL CARE UPDATE 

DATE OF DECISION: 4 MARCH 2021 

REPORT OF: COUNCILLOR BOGLE 

CHAIR OF THE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Title:  Scrutiny Manager Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 Name: Mark Pirnie   

 E-mail Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

At the request of the Chair, the Cabinet Member for Health and Adults and the 
Executive Director - Wellbeing (Health and Adults) have been invited to update the 
Panel on developments in Adult Social Care since the previous update and to outline 
the direction of travel for the service. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Panel consider and challenge the information presented to 
the Panel by the Cabinet Member for Health and Adults and the 
Executive Director - Wellbeing (Health and Adults).  

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To enable the Panel to scrutinise developments in Adult Social Care. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. No alternative options have been considered. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. Following an update at the 17 December 2020 meeting the Panel requested 
that post Covid-19 demand, and the additional funding proposed for Adult 
Social Care, is considered at the 4 March 2021 meeting of the HOSP. 

4. In light of impending personnel changes within the Adult Social Care senior 
management team, the Chair has also asked for a re-iteration of the road map 
for the service previously outlined; re-assurance about future plans; and, an 
insight into the management structure of the service, including Integrated 
Commissioning, moving forward. 

5. A presentation has been prepared by the Executive Director that will be 
delivered at the meeting.  The Panel are requested to consider the 
information presented and discuss the detail with the Cabinet Member and 
Executive Director. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  Page 51

Agenda Item 9



6. To be outlined in the presentation to be delivered at the meeting. 

Property/Other 

7. To be outlined in the presentation to be delivered at the meeting. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

8. The duty for local authorities to undertake health scrutiny is set out in National 
Health Service Act 2006. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set 
out in Part 1A Section 9 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

Other Legal Implications:  

9. None 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

10. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

11. None 

 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. None 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out? 

No 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out?   

No 

Other Background Documents 

Other Background documents available for inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. N/A  

 

Page 52



DECISION-MAKER:  HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

SUBJECT: MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS 

DATE OF DECISION: 4 MARCH 2021 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR – LEGAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Executive Director  Title Deputy Chief Executive 

 Name:  Mike Harris Tel: 023 8083 2882 

 E-mail: Mike.harris@southampton.gov.uk 

Author: Title Scrutiny Manager 

 Name:  Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 E-mail: Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This item enables the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel to monitor and track 
progress on recommendations made at previous meetings.   

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 (i) That the Panel considers the responses to recommendations from 
previous meetings and provides feedback.   

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To assist the Panel in assessing the impact and consequence of 
recommendations made at previous meetings. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2. None.   

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made at previous 
meetings of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel.  It also contains 
summaries of any action taken in response to the recommendations. 

4.   The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the Panel 
confirms acceptance of the items marked as completed they will be removed 
from the list.  In cases where action on the recommendation is outstanding or 
the Panel does not accept the matter has been adequately completed, it will 
be kept on the list and reported back to the next meeting.  It will remain on the 
list until such time as the Panel accepts the recommendation as completed.  
Rejected recommendations will only be removed from the list after being 
reported to the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel.   

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



Capital/Revenue/Property/Other  

5. None 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

6. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Part 1A Section 9 of 
the Local Government Act 2000. 

Other Legal Implications:  

7. None 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

8. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

9. None 
 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations – 4 March 2021 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and 

Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out. 

No 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out.   

No 

Other Background Documents 

Other Background documents available for inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 

Page 54



 

  

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel (HOSP) 
Scrutiny Monitoring – 4 March 2021 

 

Date Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status 

17/12/20 Mental Health 
Update 

1) That the requested additional information on 
accommodation for rough sleepers during the 
pandemic is circulated to the Panel.  
 

Response from Stephanie Ramsey circulated 
21/12/2020. 

Complete 

17/12/20 Adult Social 
Care Update 

1) That the Social Care Health Check is shared 
with the HOSP when it is completed. 

Update to be provided at the meeting.  

2) That absence data, broken down by Adult 
Social Care teams, is circulated to the Panel. 

Update to be provided at the meeting.  

3) That the Panel consider post Covid-19 demand, 
and the additional funding proposed for adult 
social care at the 4 March 2021 meeting of the 
HOSP. 

Update to be provided at the meeting.  

17/12/20 Covid-19 
Planning 

1) That, reflecting the role played by elected 
members in engaging with residents, councillors 
are kept informed of the appropriate 
communications and messages with regards to 
the roll out of the vaccination in Southampton.  

Regular updates on the vaccination programme are 
now being circulated to Councillors – Scrutiny 
Manager 

 

2) That, reflecting concerns that the message will 
be diluted with the commencement of 
vaccinations, public health messages with 
regards to hands, face, space are reinforced to 
remind the public of the ongoing need to remain 
vigilant.   

  

  

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	7 Covid-19 Planning
	Appendix 1 - Local Outbreak Engagement Board paper on HIOW COVID-19 Vaccination Programme.pdf
	Appendix 2 - Local Outbreak Engagement Board paper on Southampton Test and Trace.pdf
	Appendix 3 - Impact of Covid-19 on the NHS in Southampton.docx

	8 Southampton Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1 - SSAB Annual Report 2019-2020.pdf

	9 Adult Social Care Update
	10 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations
	Appendix 1 - Monitoring Appendix.docx


